
Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes 
 

Lleoliad: 
Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 
Dydd Mercher, 14 Mawrth 2012  

 

Amser: 
09:00 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  

Siân Phipps 
Clerc y Pwyllgor 
029 2089 8582 
enterprise.committee@wales.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 
 

 

Cyfarfod preifat cyn y prif gyfarfod (09.15 - 09.30) 

Briff i Horizon 2020 (PREIFAT 09.15 - 09.30) 

1. Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon   

2. Ymchwiliad i gysylltedd rhyngwladol drwy borthladdoedd a 
meysydd awyr Cymru - Sesiwn dystiolaeth (09.30 - 10.30) (Tudalennau 
1 - 37)  
Papur 1 
Alec Don, Prif Weithredwr, Awdurdod Porthladd Aberdaugleddau 
 
Papur 2 
Matthew Kennerley, Cyfarwyddwr Porthladd, De Cymru – Cymdeithas Porthladdoedd 
Prydain 

Papur 3 
Ian Davies, Cyfarwyddwr Llwybr Coridor y De - Stena Line 

 
  

3. Sesiwn i graffu ar waith y Gweinidog - y Gweinidog Busnes, 
Menter, Technoleg a Gwyddoniaeth (10.30 - 11.30) (Tudalennau 38 - 40)  

Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus



Papur 4 
Edwina Hart AC, y Gweinidog Busnes, Menter, Technoleg a Gwyddoniaeth  
James Price, Cyfarwyddwr Cyffredinol, Yr Adran Busnes, Menter, Technoleg a 
Gwyddoniaeth (BETS)  



1 

 

Enterprise and Business Committee inquiry into international connectivity  

through Welsh Ports and Airports 

 

Submission by Milford Haven Port Authority 

5 March 2012 

 

1.0 Introduction to Milford Haven Port 

 

1.1 Milford Haven Port is the UK’s third largest port as measured by cargo throughput, 

handling over 44m tonnes of cargo per annum.  It is very much Wales’ largest port 

handling over 70% of cargos moving into and out of Welsh ports. 

 

1.2 It is a key strategic national enterprise meeting 20 to 30% of the UK’s energy 

requirements and embraces manufacturing and throughput terminals owned and 

operated by some of the World’s largest and most prestigious energy industries: 

 

Exxon   - South Hook LNG 

Qatar Gas  - South Hook LNG 

Valero   - Pembroke Refinery 

Murphy Oil Corp - Murco 

BG   - Dragon LNG 

Petronas  - Dragon LNG 

RWE n Power  - Pembroke Power Station 

SEM    - SEM Logistics oil depot 

 

1.3 The Port also hosts the important twice daily ferry link to Southern Ireland operated 

by Irish Ferries, and encompasses two further important port assets in the form of 

Milford Docks – the largest fishing port in Wales and a substantial marina, and 

Pembroke Port, the base for a strong cluster of marine engineering businesses as 

well as the ferry service. 

 

1.4 Milford Haven is in close proximity to one of the UK’s six best tidal energy locations, 

and other marine renewable sites such as the proposed Atlantic Array. 

 

1.5 The port area is served by high capacity oil and petroleum product pipelines, as well 

a 5GW capacity 400kva electrical grid spur. 

 

1.6 The port has attracted over £3bn of inward investment in the last 5 years, entirely 

private sector funded, due to the strengths of the port in terms of its deep water 

(the ability to handle the largest ships afloat conferring the scope for the energy 

industry to operate at the requisite scale to make it internationally competitive) the 

availability of sites, and the proximity to Atlantic trade routes. 

 

Eitem 2

Tudalen 1



2 

 

1.7 Milford Haven Port Authority is a commercial business operating the port and 

managing the waterway, and as such is in competition with all other ports 

throughout the UK, Europe and beyond.   

 

1.8 The economic cluster around the Haven waterway is directly responsible for over 

5,000 jobs in Wales and £412m per annum of Gross Value Added.  MHPA itself has 

210 employees.  Its turnover is £30m pa, it makes a profit before tax of £7.1m pa, 

and pays £2.0m of corporation tax per annum. 

 

1.9 MHPA is developing a Masterplan for adding new deep water port activity to the 

port, and which will lay the ground for substantial new investment in the tourism, 

fishing, leisure and marine engineering sectors.  Some of these plans will entail the 

need to secure development consents in due course, which will require the support 

of Welsh Government. 

 

 

2.0 What role do the Welsh Government and local authorities play in facilitating the 

development of Welsh ports and airports? 

 

2.1 The key requirement for the successful delivery of new investment plans within any 

port is policy and zoning that is fully and clearly supportive of development.  This is 

considerably more important than the simple provision of money, which is usually 

only necessary to overcome the additional costs which are imposed, when a 

development proposal is made uneconomic through the imposition of Section 106 

and other similar obligations. 

 

2.2 The consenting framework places different pieces of legislation in competition with 

each other, and creates a level of complexity that is by any measure, daunting to 

deal with.  It also leaves open too many channels for consenting processes to be 

subject to continuous challenge.  If the formal decision on a development delivered 

at the end of a public inquiry in a connection with a proposed development is 

positive, and the development seems set to proceed, there is currently almost 

endless scope for those who lost at the public inquiry stage to take their fight 

forward by other means. 

 

2.3 This overall framework, including as it does Marine Spatial Plans, environmental 

protection zoning,  land-based planning and a plethora of other conflicting 

legislation and policies, has been put in place by government of all dimensions (local, 

regional, national, and supranational).  A key role for the Welsh Government and 

local authorities is now to strip away this complexity and reduce the risk and 

timeframe associated with consenting processes.  They will not do this without 

working closely with the UK and EU governments. 

 

 

Tudalen 2



3 

 

3.0 What factors have contributed to the decline in business through Cardiff Airport? 

 

3.1 MHPA has no comment on this question 

 

 

4.0 How effectively does Welsh Government policy, primarily in the areas of transport, 

economic development and land use planning policy, support the development of Welsh 

Ports and Airports? 

 

4.1 There is undoubtedly a growing political will to support even controversial 

developments, and this is a very welcome evolution.  How this is translated into 

regulation and planning is often another matter, as planning documents tend to 

include wording that is not only supportive of development but gives equal comfort 

to those who want to resist development in their area. 

 

4.2 We strongly advocate facilitating continuous development and investment where 

industries are already strong.  In the case of Milford Haven, the port is pre-eminent 

in terms of volumes and involvement in the energy and engineering sectors.  The 

businesses in these sectors are always going to need to invest to improve their 

productivity and to ensure they remain viable for the long term. 

 

4.3 The concentration of trade routes on a successful port such as Milford Haven where 

90% of all finished petroleum products is re-exported by sea to Europe, Africa , and 

the US, only serves to reinforce the area’s productivity, and leads to the 

development and exploitation of synergies between operators. 

 

4.4 We believe policy too often serves to dissipate the core strengths of an industrial 

area by subsidising the preservation or creation of economic activity in small, 

remote, and inappropriate locations.  Policy would be much better focused on 

improving commuter links to successful commercial centres, and itself investing in 

inland distribution and transportation networks rather than seeking to impose such 

costs on developers through section 106 obligations. 

 

4.5 In this context we would like to see the Welsh Government advocate and bring 

forward plans for the following 

• The creation of a high voltage link from Pembroke to Anglesey to create a ring 

main 

• The installation of an electricity interconnector from Ireland to Pembrokeshire 

and support for additional power generation in Pembrokeshire.  This will 

enhance industrial productivity by intensifying the utilisation of existing berth 

infrastructure and deep sea port services. 

• The installation of high capacity high speed broadband links to Pembrokeshire 

• Eventual investment in the dualling of road links which would improve 

commutability and have a substantial impact on the tourism economy. 

 

Tudalen 3



4 

 

 

5.0 How can the Welsh Government develop economic opportunities for example from 

tourism, international trade etc.? 

 

5.1 Investment in roads and railways is never bad, and always delivers economic 

growth.  Pembrokeshire’s tourism economy is something of a poor relation 

compared to the tourism economy of Cornwall and Devon, and yet the distances 

from Swindon to Truro and Swindon to Tenby (the town in Pembrokeshire with over 

50% of the County’s holiday accommodation) are as follows: 

 

Swindon/Truro  206 miles 

Swindon/ Tenby 159 miles 

 

5.2 Roads by themselves are not enough, however.  The quality of tourist 

accommodation, the visual appeal of towns and villages, and the quality and number 

of activities on offer are all areas to be addressed.  Investors will invest when they 

believe the growth will occur and, critically, provided it is easy and quick to get 

planning and development consents. 

 

5.3 We are also actively involved in seeking to attract a larger part of a growing cruise 

market to Milford Haven. We are currently constrained by the absence of suitable 

infrastructure needed to berth the ever larger vessels that are being utilised to 

satisfy growth in demand. Tangible support towards the provision of such 

infrastructure would be very beneficial to the tourism industry. 

 

 

6.0 Given that ports and airports policy is a reserved matter, how effectively does the Welsh 

Government engage with the UK Government in the interests of Wales? 

 

6.1 Given the fragile state of the economy and the need for decisive co-ordinated action 

there is a potential risk that too much time and effort  may be  invested in trying to 

get these matters devolved, and not enough in working with the UK Government. 

 

6.2 What must be understood is that ports are not only in competition with UK ports but 

also ports in Europe and beyond.   

• There are over 30 LNG terminals in Europe and the undersea gas connections 

mean that there is no reason why LNG should be channelled through Milford 

Haven. 

• The Gulf refinery at Milford Haven ceased operating in 1998, and the entire 

refinery was shipped to India and re-built, where it continues to operate to this 

day. 

 

6.3 Close working with the UK government is required to 

Tudalen 4



5 

 

• Ensure the entirety of Southern Corridor through to Pembrokeshire and on to 

Ireland is designated as part of the Core European Ten-T network 

• Ensure EU legislation is not gold plated, to the detriment of the Welsh economy 

• Ensure that UK energy policy is supportive of the further development of Milford 

Haven as the UK’s pre-eminent energy hub, by supporting the installation of 

additional gas and electricity grid connections as mentioned above, and 

supporting the construction of additional power generation capacity in the area 

to improve utilisation of existing berth railway and distribution capacity. 

• Ensure that UK regulators do not drive away one of Wales’ most important 

manufacturing and exporting industries (refining) 

• Ensure that the deficit is reduced so that interest costs in the UK are kept 

competitive with other jurisdictions 

• Ensure that the costs of government are controlled and kept competitive with 

international jurisdictions so that in turn the tax burden in the UK and hence 

Wales is reduced 

• Ensure that personal tax rates are lowered across the income spectrum so that 

the costs of employment in the UK including Wales can be competitive with 

other jurisdictions 

• Ensure that the principles of pensions saving are preserved and enhanced 

• Promote growth across the UK as being the key driver of growth for Welsh ports 

 

6.4 In this context the principle of achieving devolved responsibility for ports policy 

barely registers.  There is nothing stopping the Welsh Government working intensely 

closely with Welsh ports to help achieve their investment plans, and if it is effective 

it is almost inevitable that devolution of powers will be well supported and will 

naturally follow. 

 

6.5 For example we believe that the Marine Consents Unit is fast becoming an effective 

and supportive unit, to the extent that many already consider it preferable to the 

UK’s Marine Management Organisation 

 

 

7.0 What Impact do EU State Aid regulations have on the ability of the Welsh Government to 

provide support, and what opportunities are presented by EU ports and airports policy to 

support development in Wales? 

 

7.1 Fundamentally the State Aid regulations are absolutely correct, and are designed to 

prevent damage to one viable business through the granting of government subsidy 

to another in a competing location. 

 

7.2 Wales should instead seek to compete by creating a regulatory framework within 

the law which make it easier and faster to invest, with lower regulatory and taxation 

burdens relative to other competing jurisdictions.  This includes reducing or 

eliminating the imposition of planning gain costs. 

Tudalen 5



6 

 

8.0 Concluding Comments 

 

8.1 The possible designation of the Milford Haven Waterway as an enterprise zone is 

very much welcomed by MHPA.  We have worked closely with local energy 

companies through the Milford Haven Energy Forum and Pembrokeshire County 

Council to promote this proposed designation. 

 

8.2 The move is particularly welcomed as a first step towards achieving some of the 

necessary benefits outlined above, and for the clear implication that this nationally 

significant economic zone has the broadest possible support from Government. 

 

8.3 MHPA has just published an important economic study undertaken independently 

by Cardiff University which demonstrates the far reaching linkages between the 

business in the Milford Haven locality and spreading into Wales and beyond. 

 

8.4 It identifies high skill employment clusters in energy, engineering, fishing and marine 

leisure. 

 

8.5 The study conservatively estimates the total jobs directly associated with the Haven 

waterway at over 5,000.  When the impact of reliable and cost effective supplies of 

energy to UK industry and households are taken into account it is also possible to 

assess that for every job directly dependent on the Haven Waterway, there are in 

fact 7 jobs sustained in the economy as a whole. 

 

8.6 The primary requirement of all commercial operators in the area is that Government 

does everything within its power to make it 

• Easy to Invest 

• Easy to Operate 

• Easy to Employ 

 

 

 

 

 

Milford Haven Port Authority 

 

 

Tudalen 6



 February 2012 

Page 1 of 4 

SUBMISSION TO ENTERPRISE & BUSINESS COMMITTEE

INTO INTERNATIONAL CONNECTIVITY THROUGH 

WELSH PORTS AND AIRPORTS

ASSOCIATED BRITISH PORTS, SOUTH WALES 

1. Introduction

1.1. This submission is made on behalf of Associated British Ports (ABP). ABP is the 

UK’s leading and largest ports group with 21 port facilities and other transport related 

businesses around England, Wales and Scotland. ABP is a privately owned company. 

1.2. ABP very much welcomes this Inquiry into Ports in Wales and the interest it 

shows in a sector of major strategic and economic importance. 

1.3. Associated British Ports operate five major ports in South Wales; Newport, 

Cardiff, Barry, Port Talbot and Swansea. These ports are important gateways for trade 

and also support major manufacturing on sites contiguous to the ports, such as Corus, 

Dow Corning and Celsa. The five ports lie on the northern shore of the Bristol 

Channel and are established as major ports in South Wales but also importantly as a 

key hub for servicing a hinterland that extends to the Midlands, southwest of England, 

M4 and M5 corridors and London. 

1.4. Seaports are unique assets in providing multi-modal hubs to users, combining 

connections between road, rail and sea. The South Wales ports all have direct links to 

the national rail network, the UK motorway system, combined with deep-water berths 

able to accommodate some of the largest ocean going vessels. 

1.5. In addition to being nodal points for import and export of cargo, ports provide 

locations for value added employment and investment from logistics providers 

through to manufacturers and retailers, and form part of the regional offering for 

attracting both UK and foreign investment. Ports close to the origin or destination of 

cargo can also minimise the environmental impact by utilising shipping, widely 

regarded as the most environmentally benign mode of transport. 

2. Contribution of Welsh ports to the economy

2.1. The importance of ports to the economy is identified in a recent research paper 

“Associated British Ports and the Welsh Economy” (Welsh Economic Research Unit, 

Cardiff Business School and Welsh Enterprise Unit, University of Glamorgan – June 

2004, updated 2009) which is attached for information. The research provides some 

key findings that illustrate the importance of ports as economic drivers for the Region. 

The fact that the activity of ABP and its tenants in South Wales directly and indirectly 

support £79.8 million per annum with a GVA of £34.2 million, and the activities of 

ABP’s port tenants account for an estimated 9,711 FTE jobs, with a direct and indirect 

output of £2.78 billion and GVA of £902.5 million (2% of the Welsh total) clearly 

illustrates the salience and potential of the seaport. 

Tudalen 7



 February 2012 

Page 2 of 4 

2.2. The South Wales Ports are key assets to the region and the industries within, and 

have capacity for substantial growth bringing employment and inward investment to 

Wales. 

2.3 Welsh ports have evolved in recent times, driven by the increasingly global nature 

of trade and the economy as well as the decline of the U.K. manufacturing sector and 

mining industry in Wales. In the last decade trade has generally grown steadily in the 

South Wales ports, closely reflecting prevailing economic conditions. There are a 

number of key areas in which there is potential for substantial growth in the scale and 

range of trade in South Wales, most notably in the energy sector and container traffic 

connecting Welsh ports with other European countries 

3. Local Development plans 

3.1 ABP believes that it is essential that the strategic importance of ports is recognised 

through local development plans and regional plans. This submission provides further 

detail of the contribution of ports to their local and regional economies, and their role 

in stimulating inward investment. 

4. Wales Freight Group 

4.1 ABP has been an active member of the Wales Freight Group that have worked in 

partnership with the Welsh Assembly Government to publish the ‘Wales Freight 

Strategy’, to deliver a “modern, efficient freight transport system in ways that will 

support and balance economic, social and environmental objectives, in line with the 

Wales Transport Strategy”. The purpose of the strategy is to assist regional transport 

consortia in the development of regional transport plans and this document should 

form part of the policy framework for the development of Welsh Ports. ABP believes 

the establishment of both the Wales Freight Group and the Welsh Ports sub-

committee has been a very positive step for developing freight strategy in Wales. 

5. Road and rail links 

5.1 Whilst recognising the need for major improvements to the M4 to ensure adequate 

connections to/from South Wales are maintained, particularly the restrictions imposed 

by the Bryn Glas tunnels, ABP is extremely concerned that the current proposals for 

the new motorway to bisect Newport Docks will adversely impact upon trade through 

the Port of Newport. This submission has already highlighted the socio-economic 

contribution of ports to their local economies and any scheme proposed should not 

adversely affect existing trade or future development prospects. ABP is fully engaged 

in the consultation process with WAG on this subject. 

5.2 ABP would also like to highlight the strategic importance of a number of local 

road enhancement projects. In particular, the completion of the Port Talbot peripheral 

distributor road, the Fabian Way infrastructure enhancement works at Swansea and 

the Eastern Bay Link Road in Cardiff all of which help to improve transport 

infrastructure to the immediate hinterland. 

Tudalen 8



 February 2012 

Page 3 of 4 

5.3 It is essential for the continued development of ports and sustainable freight 

networks that rail freight paths are retained and protected. It is also vital that work 

involving Network Rail, Freight Operating Companies, Government and other key 

stakeholders continues to remove capacity and capability constraints for freight on the 

rail network. These include removing freight network pinch points (in particular the 

Severn Tunnel) and addressing gauge issues in Wales. 

5.4 The EU Trans-European Networks (TENs) system should be considered to 

support the connectivity between ports and the hinterlands, particularly links 

extending beyond Wales. 

6. Cruise Wales 

6.1 ABP is an active member of Cruise Wales, a public-private sector partnership, 

which has been established to promote and market Wales as a cruise destination to 

international passengers. The partnership is made up of representatives from 

government, tourism and port organisations from all of the major ports in Wales. 

Cruise ships have potential to bring economic benefits to the region and its tourist 

based economy. This is a good example of how Welsh Government can develop 

economic opportunities in the key sectors they have identified. 

7. Environmental benefits of short sea shipping 

7.1 Sea transport is recognised by many as the most environmentally benign mode of 

transport and further reduces congestion on the busy road and rail infrastructure. 

Through the Wales Spatial Plan, Local development plans and other policies the 

strategic importance of ports and their ability to facilitate inward investment and 

catalyse sustainable economic growth should be recognised. Applying a “presumption 

in favour principle” to consents for developments in and around ports that encourage 

this would make investing in Wales more attractive.

8. Development opportunities 

8.1 The brown-field development land within and directly adjacent to the port estate 

provides prime sites for locating energy generation plants, particularly for renewable 

energy schemes. A number of such developments have recently received planning 

approval including the world’s largest biomass power plant at Port Talbot, which will 

import feedstock using the Tidal Harbour. 

  

8.2 There is also an opportunity to develop facilities for energy production on ports 

and contiguous sites, for example for biofuel production sites such as the bio-diesel 

production facility that recently received planning approval at the Port of Cardiff. 

Ports will also play a crucial role in supporting the development of offshore energy 

resources, providing construction sites and supply bases for exploiting wind, wave 

and tidal power. One of the zones identified by the Crown Estate for Round 3 of the 

offshore windfarm-leasing programme lies a short distance from the South-Wales 

coast. Documents such as the recently published Bioenergy Action Plan for Wales fail 

to recognise the advantages offered by ports in the energy supply chain. All aspects of 

energy policy in Wales should reflect the strategic importance of ports 

Tudalen 9



 February 2012 

Page 4 of 4 

9. EU State Aid 

9.1 The EU State Aid regulations do not adversely impact the development of ports in 

Wales. The ports sector is a market-led sector benefitting from substantial investment 

from the private sector and EU State Aid Regulations are not presently a barrier to the 

development of Welsh Ports. 

Tudalen 10



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 1 ©2009  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Associated British 

Ports: South Wales 

Economic Impact 

Assessment 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3rd February 2009 

 

Cardiff Business School 

Colum Drive 

Cardiff  

CF10 3EU 

 

 

Contact: 

Prof. Max Munday 

Email:  mundaymc@cf.ac.uk  

Tel: 02920 875089 

www.weru.org.uk  

 

 

Tudalen 11



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 2 ©2009  

1 Associated British Ports: impact assessment 

1.1 Introduction 

1.1.1 Associated British Ports (ABP, South Wales) operates the ports of Swansea, 

Port Talbot, Barry, Cardiff and Newport, with the headquarters located at 

Queen Alexandra House close to the Cardiff Bay Barrage.  

1.1.2 These five ports play an important role in the contemporary Welsh economy 

providing port services, and also with ABP property hosting a wide variety of 

tenants encompassing a range of manufacturing and services sectors. For 

many of these businesses being in close proximity to port infrastructure is 

critical to successful operations, and with other businesses directly 

dependent on ABP for port-related commercial services.  

1.1.3 The commercial land available within the curtilage of the five ABP ports 

represents an important element of the location offer of industrial South 

Wales (i.e. providing 830ha of commercial and industrial space). The five 

ports also play an important role in supporting Welsh overseas trade and 

domestic trade with 15.6m tonnes of goods going through the ports in 2007 

(13.9m tonnes of imports and 1.7m tonnes of exports). The nature of 

economic activity associated with ABP South Wales operations is complex.  

Consequently the scope of economic activity supported by ABP is complex. 

1.2 Research objectives 

1.2.1 This brief report is the second analysis of the economic impact of ABP 

operations in Industrial South Wales. During 2003-04, the Cardiff Business 

School undertook an economic impact analysis of ABP activity. This report 

works to revise the conclusions of this first report focusing on the estimated 

economic impacts associated with direct port operations, and then with a 

further estimate of the economic activity supported directly and indirectly 

within the five port boundaries. The objectives of the report are then to: 

! Examine the economic impact of ABP core port operations on the contemporary Welsh 
economy. 

! Provide an estimate of the economic activity directly supported by the tenants of ABP in 
2007, and the significance of this activity in the context of the contemporary Welsh 
economy. 

Tudalen 12



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 3 ©2009  

1.3 Structure of the report 

1.3.1 The remainder of the report is structured as follows. In the second section is 

provided a review of current ABP operations in industrial South Wales. 

1.3.2 The third section of the report discusses the activities undertaken by tenants 

of ABP, and the method employed to gain an estimate of the employment 

and output supported by these tenants. 

1.3.3 The fourth section then examines how far the direct port operations of ABP 

and their tenant set support activity elsewhere in the Welsh economy. This 

section explores, for example, how through local purchasing of goods and 

services, ABP supports output and employment in the regional value chain. 

Moreover, the employees of ABP and their tenants spend a proportion of 

their wages and salaries on goods and services produced in Wales, and 

hence they also support indirect economic activity in Wales. 

1.3.4 The fifth section concludes with a discussion of the significance of port 

infrastructure to Wales based on the impact assessment, and then 

highlights the linkages between port infrastructure and the development 

needs of the Welsh economy.  

 

 

Tudalen 13



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 4 ©2009  

2 ABP South Wales: Core Operations 

2.1 Introduction 

2.1.1 This section examines the core operations of ABP in South Wales, and 

concludes with an estimate of the direct economic effects associated with 

the organisation’s operations in 2007. This is followed in the next section by 

an examination of the activity undertaken by the tenants of ABP. 

2.2 ABP: Main Operations 

2.2.1 ABP South Wales is one part of the Port Division of ABP Holdings Ltd. ABP 

South Wales activities involves the management and operation of the ports 

of Swansea, Port Talbot, Barry, Cardiff and Newport. ABP income in South 

Wales is derived from several sources including: 

! harbour dues connected with port operations, and calculated from weight of cargo 
handled; 

! pilotage fees paid by ship owners; 
! payments in connection with storage of goods; 
! lease of port property, together with property sales. 

2.2.2 The nature of individual port operations varies greatly. General port 

operations include cargo handling, engineering (specialist maintenance of 

cranes, lock gates, roads and other infrastructure), security, warehousing 

and storage, and dredging.  

2.2.3 Typically in the immediate hinterland of each port are organisations 

dependent in part on port activity including ship-brokers and agents, and 

then freight forwarders, stevedoring firms, towage firms, dry dock operators, 

ships chandlers, transport and warehousing operators, and construction 

industry firms. Below is a brief profile of the activities of each port. 

2.2.4 Swansea is the western-most of ABP’s South Wales ports, and has three 

docks (Queen’s, King’s and Prince of Wales). Much of the port’s trade 

focuses on north and west Europe, the Mediterranean and Ireland. During 

2007 the port handled 682,000 tonnes of cargo comprising 521,000 of 

imports and 161,000 of exports. Key cargoes included fertilisers, 

aggregates, cement/clinker, steel and forest products. Swansea port also 

has a container terminal. The port offers 30,000sqm of enclosed and 16ha 

of open storage, and features a range of cargo handling equipment.  

Swansea can accommodate vessels up to 30,000 tonnes deadweight. 

 

Tudalen 14



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 5 ©2009  

2.2.5 Port Talbot’s main asset is a tidal harbour, one of just a few ports in the UK 

that can take vessels of up to 170,000dwt. Adjacent to the port is the Corus 

Port Talbot Steelworks. The deep water port facilities are vital to its 

operations. Key cargoes are coal and iron ore for Corus. The port also deals 

with a combination of self discharging vessels, and normal bulk carriers 

which are unloaded by dockside cranes. Port Talbot docks takes vessels of a 

smaller size for shipment of processed slag. During 2007 imports into Port 

Talbot were nearly 8.8m tonnes, with exports of 321,000 tonnes. 

2.2.6 Barry docks sits adjacent to the Barry chemicals complex. During 2007 the 

port handled 456,000 tonnes of cargo, 370,000 tonnes of which was 

chemicals. The port also handles containers, dry bulks, and forest products. 

Barry also hosts large tank storage facilities closely tied to the Dow Corning 

and wider petrochemical complex at Barry. Groupe Samat operates a 

terminal at Barry Docks for Dow Corning, while Scott Timber imports timber 

into Barry for pallet production. Another key port player is Vopak which 

provides 45,000 cubic meters of liquid bulk storage linked to the Dow 

Corning chemical complex. 

2.2.7 Cardiff port deals with a wide range of cargoes including containers (Cardiff 

Container Terminal), steels, timber, both dry and liquid bulk products. Cardiff 

also has cold store facilities for fruit and vegetables. This port has seen 

extensive investment in state of the art storage and cargo handling 

equipment (Cardiff Distribution Terminal), and now attracts some cruise 

liner traffic, with the port close to Cardiff city centre and surrounding 

attractions.  In terms of storage, Cardiff features over 54,000 square meters 

of transit, distribution and steel storage sheds. During 2007, the port 

handled over 3m tonnes of cargoes and with petroleum products and steel 

making up nearly two thirds of handled cargo. 

2.2.8 Finally, Newport is the eastern most port of ABP in industrial South Wales. 

The port handles a wide range of cargoes including coal, agri-bulks, 

aggregates and minerals, steel, scrap and timber. During 2007 the port 

handled 2.33m tonnes of cargo, and with steel imports/exports accounting 

for around 42% of handled cargo in tonnage terms. Sims Group has two 

specialised facilities at Newport docks for recycling and exporting metals, 

and the port offers 25,000 sq m of covered storage for handling steel 

products. 

2.2.9 Figure 2.1 shows the total tonnages of cargo going through each of the ABP 

South Wales ports in 2007. More details are given in Figure 2.2. The largest 

volumes of products handled were iron ore (i.e. around 5.8m tonnes into 

Port Talbot), coal and coke (around 2.8m tonnes also into Port Talbot), and 

chemicals/oil and petroleum (just over 1.8m tonnes and largely inward 

cargoes to Cardiff). Exports in 2007 from ABP South Wales ports were 

around 1.7m tonnes, of which 21% was steel exports (primarily out of Cardiff 

Tudalen 15



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 6 ©2009  

and Newport), and with a further 34% being scrap exports also largely from 

Cardiff and Newport. Metal exports from the region were expected to top 1m 

tonnes in 2008. 

Figure 2.1 Volumes of Cargo at ABP South Wales Ports, 2007 (000s tonnes). 

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

Swansea Port Talbot Barry Cardiff Newport

 

Source: Associated British Ports 

Figure 2.2 Analysis of South Wales ABP Port Tonnages by Product (000s tonnes) 

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

Iron ore Coal/coke Metals Oil & related Non-metallic

minerals

Liquid

chemicals

Forest

products

Others Agribulks

 

Source: Associated British Ports 

2.2.10 In total the five ABP ports handled 15.6m tonnes of cargoes in 2007. 

2.3 ABP Employment and output 

2.3.1 ABP supports a great deal of activity on its property (see later). However, the 

focus in this section is on ABP’s core activities rather than those of tenants 

within the port boundaries. The financial details outlined below form one 

part of the overall impact assessment discussed in later in this report. 

2.3.2 ABP directly employs 201 (full-time) people in Wales. The majority of these 

are at Cardiff (81), followed by Newport (56), Swansea and Port Talbot (41) 

Tudalen 16



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 7 ©2009  

and Barry (23). However, this total does not include 95 people working for 

the UK Dredging subsidiary of ABP (mostly as crew on vessels). ABP Marine 

employs pilots at both Barry and Swansea which service the wider South 

Wales network of ports. In the analysis that follows in this report we do not 

include the activities of UK Dredging. 

Table 2.1 ABP South Wales: Summary of Operations 

 2003 2007 

ABP estimated output (sales)* £42.3m £43.4m 

Employment (excluding UK 
Dredging) 

212 201 

Gross payroll costs £7.54 £8.19m 

Capital spending £12.10 £6.60m 

Operational spending (non-
wage) 

£16.40 £16.65m 

*Note this excludes income from property development and sales. 

Source: Associated British Ports 

2.3.3 During 2007 ABP South Wales estimated gross output (i.e. its 

turnover/sales) was £43.4m. Of this total £27.6m represented revenue from 

core port operations (i.e. from companies and ship owners in the UK and 

overseas), and with £12.6m from port-related property income. This latter 

represents incomes from ABP tenants. In 2007 ABP had 348 separate 

tenants (Table 2.2), the majority of which are in Barry (103), Cardiff (101) 

and Newport (78), and then with smaller numbers of tenants at Port Talbot 

(37) and Swansea (29). 

2.3.4 There was a smaller amount of UK and overseas sales (£3.2m). Table 2.1 

provides a summary of financial and employment information for 2007, with 

comparative data used in the initial report undertaken for ABP in 2003-04. 

 

Table 2.2. Summary: ABP South Wales Ports Tenant Numbers 2003 and 2007 and 
Change 

Port Tenants 2003 Tenants 2007 Change% 

Barry 114 103 -9.6 

Cardiff 74 101 +36.4 

Newport 66 78 +18.1 

Port Talbot 55 37 -32.7 

Swansea 26 29 +11.5 

Total 335 348 +3.9 

Source: Associated British Ports 

Tudalen 17



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 8 ©2009  

2.3.5 Key items of ABP spending relate to gross payroll costs, capital spending 

and operational (non-wage) spending. Gross payroll costs were around 

£8.2m in 2007, with capital spending of £6.6m.  

2.3.6 Part of the capital spending for the year related to an extension of the Sims 

recycling site at Newport, and the development of a waste electrical and 

electronic equipment plant that will allow the site to process over 100,000 

tonnes of electrical goods per annum. This new infrastructure was developed 

jointly by Sims and ABP. Other investments during the year related to 

infrastructure improvements for Corus at Port Talbot.  

2.3.7 Total operational (non-wage) spending was £16.6m with key items being 

dredging costs, engineering services, stevedoring (sub-contracted), 

maintenance materials and security.  

Table 2.3: ABP Spending Summary, 2007  

Purchases £000s 

Purchased materials 773 

Electricity and water 1,000 

Business rates & insurance 2,132 

Dredging 1,633 

Sub-contracted services and labour 4,334 

Other items (including depreciation & property cost of 
sales) 

6,777 

Purchases ex capital spend and employment costs 16,649 

Capital spending 6,600 

Direct labour inc OT, NI +other staff costs 8,186 

Total purchases 31,435 

Note: Excludes the activities of UK Dredging 

Source: Derived from data provided by Associated British Ports 

 

2.3.8 It is important to recognise that these costs relate to ABP South Wales ports. 

ABP also operates the UK Dredging company in Wales which has an 

estimated sales from Welsh operations of £11.1m in 2007. 

2.3.9 A series of points can be made about the spending patterns of ABP. The 

nature of the demands of the company mean that it is able to source many 

of its purchased goods and services in the local economy. For example, 

taking the capital spending (£6.6m) together with the non-wage operational 

spending of £16.6m together, it is estimated that over 70% of this joint 

spending is with Welsh suppliers of goods and services. For example, 

services such as stevedoring, engineering and security are wholly sourced in 

the local economy, as are equipment hire and dredging requirements. 

Moreover, in the case of maintenance materials it is estimated that 75% is 

Tudalen 18



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 9 ©2009  

purchased in Wales, growing to 80% in the case of cargo handling 

equipment. These local spending patterns are a key factor that drives the 

indirect economic impacts of ABP activity. For example, this local spending 

supports employment and incomes elsewhere in the regional economy. An 

important additional issue linked to the later economic modelling is that 

ABP tends to spend money locally with relatively labour intensive industries. 

2.3.10 We return to estimate the impact of ABP spending on the regional economy 

in section 4 of this report. 

 

Tudalen 19



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 10 ©2009  

3 Scope and Scale of activity undertaken by ABP tenants and Estimates of 

their Employment, Output and Value Added 

3.1 Introduction 

3.1.1 There is a wide variety of activity undertaken on ABP property in South 

Wales. Moreover, some industries adjacent to port infrastructure are heavily 

dependent on the port, such that absence of the port and port services 

would directly threaten the continuation of operations in South Wales.  

3.1.2 To illustrate the diverse range of activity undertaken on ABP property Table 

3.1 highlights the nature of 5 very different tenants on each port site. 

Table 3.1 ABP Tenants: Examples of Activity 

ABP Barry ABP Cardiff ABP Newport ABP Port Talbot ABP Swansea 

Groupe Samat 
UK (transport 
services) 

Cardiff Harbour 
Authority (public 
sector) 

Sims 
(electronic 
goods 
recycling) 

Civil and Marine 
(slag products) 

Swansea 
Container 
Terminal 
(transport 
services) 

JT Evans (road 
haulage) 

Bob Martin 
Company 
(feeds) 

Jewson (timber 
products) 

Ready Steels (steel 
reinforcements) 

Swansea Bay Port 
Health Authority 

Harris Pye 
Marine (marine 
services) 

Biffa (waste 
services) 

Origin 
(fertilisers) 

Celtic (engineering 
services) 

Inchcape (shipping 
services) 

Scott Timber 
(wood 
importers and 
products) 

Air products 
(industrial 
gases) 

Rexam 
Corrugated 
(packaging) 

Corus Strip 
products (steel) 

Tarmac 
(construction and 
aggregates) 

Vopak 
(transport and 
storage) 

Texaco (fuel 
distribution) 

Severn Sands 
(aggregate 
supply) 

The Missions to 
Seaman 

Morrissey cement 
(aggregates) 

 

3.1.3 This section provides an estimate of the employment and gross output 

linked to activity on (or dependent upon) ABP property. The first part of the 

section describes the method through which the estimates were gained. The 

second section provides a commentary on the estimates. 

3.2 Estimates of Employment: Method 

3.2.1 It is important here to make a distinction between activity undertaken by 

tenants of ABP within the port areas and activities outside of these areas. 

Several ABP tenants have facilities within the ports, but with the bulk of their 

activity located outside the port area. Examples here would be Dow Corning 

Tudalen 20



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 11 ©2009  

at Barry and Corus Strip Products at Port Talbot. One purpose of the report is 

to identify industries that are strongly dependent on the ports. Consequently 

there are several cases of firms operating adjacent to ABP property, who pay 

fees to ABP for port facilities and storage etc, but whose main operations 

would be threatened by port failure.  

3.2.2 The task here was first to estimate employment and output within the port 

boundaries and then to add an estimate for adjacent activities deemed as 

directly dependent.  

3.2.3 In the first economic impact study undertaken by ABP in 2003-04 three 

main sources were used to identify employment levels within the ports 

themselves. These were a direct survey of tenants, company accounts 

databases, and the Office for National Statistics Annual Business Inquiry 

(ABI).1 For the revised work we have made reference to the results from the 

earlier survey, but with concerns that the employment data here would be 

very out of date. Indeed, the period 2003-2007 has seen further upheavals 

in Welsh manufacturing in particular. 

3.2.4 In consequence, for this revision we have been more reliant on information 

contained within the ABI. This has been used differently for this revision. The 

challenge here was to collect employment data at the two digit (Standard 

Industrial Classification) level for areas corresponding as far as possible with 

ABP boundaries. For the first analysis in the ABP (2004) impact report we 

were able to use the ABI for 2002. For this iteration, we have used the ABI 

for 2006 but have linked the ABP port boundaries to super output areas2 

(i.e. a lower level of spatial aggregation than wards), and then used this as a 

basis for a 2007 employment estimate.  

3.2.5 Even these smaller areas did not exactly correspond with the ABP 

boundaries such that it was also necessary to use the employment 

estimates at super output area level with the tenants lists provided by ABP 

to come to an estimate of full time employees within each port boundary.  

3.2.6 It is stressed that the employment numbers and associated output and 

gross value added figures are estimates for 2007. 

3.2.7 Added to this full time employment estimate within the port curtilage, was 

employment in two large companies that had manufacturing operations 

directly adjacent to ABP property, but were also ABP tenants (i.e. leasing 

port facilities, or storage areas etc). These two companies are particularly 

dependent on the port infrastructure for their continued successful 

operations in Wales. Similar conclusions could undoubtedly be made for 

                                                      
1 See initial ABP economic impact report produced in December 2004, and estimating tenant activity for 2003. 
2 The five ABP port boundaries linked to the following super output areas Cardiff 047c, Neath Port Talbot O19a, Newport 

O18b, Vale of Glamorgan O15c & O15e, and Swansea O21a & O21b. 

Tudalen 21



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 12 ©2009  

other ABP tenants who also had manufacturing operations just outside the 

ABP boundaries, but the dependence of others was not so easily identifiable.  

3.2.8 The full time employment (FTE) estimates were used in conjunction with ABI 

information of output and gross value added by Welsh industries to gain an 

estimate of the output and gross value added (GVA) supported on ABP 

property.  

3.3 Employment and output estimates 

3.3.1 Table 3.2 shows our estimate of FTE employment within ABP boundaries 

plus FTE employment in two large port dependent manufacturing operations 

adjacent to ABP facilities. This does not include the direct employment 

provided by ABP itself.  

Table 3.2 Employment, output and gross value added estimate; ABP tenants, 2007 

Industry SIC codes 
(see note) 

Employment (full time 
equivalents) 

Output 
£m 

Gross VA  
(GVA) £m 

Manufacture of chemicals, rubber and 
plastics, non-metallic minerals 

 
23-26 713 130.7 44.0 

Manufacture of metals and metal 
products 

 
27-28 4150 881.1 154.3 

Manufacture of electrical goods and 
other engineering 

 
29-35 203 31.5 9.7 

Other manufacturing and recycling  
15, 20-22, 
36-37 540 96.0 25.2 

Construction and aggregate products 
 
45, 14 1336 135.5 50.0 

Wholesale etc  51 
734 51.6 33.4 

Transport and communication 60-64 
1214 137.0 67.1 

Renting equipment and other business 
services 

70,71, 74 
727 41.2 26.1 

Public admin 75 
94 7.2 2.4 

Total  
9711 1511.8 412.1 

Note: for some SIC 2 digit codes there was no employment identified within ABP boundaries. 
Totals may not sum due to rounding 

3.3.2 Table 3.2 reveals that ABP tenants provide an estimated 9,711 FTE jobs in 

industrial South Wales. Around 43% is in basic metals and metal products 

where the estimated 4,150 FTEs can be connected to £0.88bn of output and 

£154m of gross value added.  

3.3.3 Other larger sectors in employment terms include construction and 

aggregates. Here it is estimated that the sector employs 1,336 FTEs within 

Tudalen 22



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 13 ©2009  

ABP boundaries, which is associated with output of £136m and value added 

of £50m. There are also a large number of employees within the ABP 

curtilage connected to transport and communications. This includes a large 

number of firms providing road transport, and firms providing transport 

services. It is estimated that this sector accounted for 1,214 FTEs, and 

£137m of output and £67.1m of gross value added. 

3.3.4 In total it is estimated that the firms either within the curtilage or directly 

dependent on the port infrastructure accounted for £1.51bn of output and 

£412m of gross value added. Placed in another way this means each 

employee in a tenant firm is associated with an average of around 

£156,000 of output and £42,400 of GVA. 

3.3.5 In context, total Welsh output and GVA in 2007 were an estimated £91.1bn 

and £44.3bn respectively. Then the output and GVA highlighted as 

attributable to ABP tenants and dependent firms in Table 3.2 in 2007 

represented 1.7% of Welsh output in 2007, and 0.9% of Welsh GVA in that 

year. 

3.3.6 It is also important to note that much of the employment described in Table 

3.2 is in manufacturing sectors that are strong exporters, and where 

earnings levels are relatively high i.e. relatively capital intensive sectors such 

as metal manufacturing and chemicals. These sectors are important 

contributors to the contemporary regional economy and play a key role in 

supporting regional incomes. 

3.3.7 In summary this section gives testimony to the diverse operations supported 

by ABP facilities in South Wales. However, ABP and its tenants also support 

activity in the wider Welsh economy. This is analysed in the next section. 

Tudalen 23



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 14 ©2009  

4 ABP, ABP Tenants and the Welsh Economy 

4.1 ABP and Tenants: Direct and Indirect Effects 

4.1.1 The opening sections have examined the direct activity supported by ABP 

and their tenants in terms of employment, output and gross value added. 

However, ABP and its tenants support economic activity across Wales. ABP 

and their tenants spend money in the regional economy. This spending will 

have indirect economic consequences according to how that money is spent.    

4.1.2 ABP and its tenants purchase as inputs the goods and services provided by 

other Welsh industries. For example, in the ABP case this includes items 

such as sub-contract services, materials, construction industry outputs, fuel 

and other equipment. The producers of these goods and services then also 

spend money on the outputs of other Welsh industries.  Importantly, this 

spending supports rounds of further spending in the local economy.  These 

are categorised as ‘supplier’ effects, and an important determinant of the 

size of these effects is the level of local sourcing by firms, and then the 

levels of local sourcing along the supply chain. Again, in the case of ABP 

itself, a large proportion of its spending is on locally produced goods and 

services, however, this proportion will vary considerably between the 

different tenants. For example, some manufacturers will be heavily 

dependent on imported goods and services. 

4.1.3 Economic impacts go well beyond these supplier effects.  For example, ABP 

has a payroll bill of over £8m per annum. This represents in large measure 

incomes to local people. A proportion of these incomes is spent within 

Wales, and then this spending also adds to local demand.  Similarly a 

proportion of the employment in local suppliers is supported by ABP and its 

tenants, and these employees earn incomes that when spent would also 

generate further local demands.   

4.1.4 These are examples of ‘induced-income’ effects and must be added to the 

‘supplier’ effects to arrive at a full understanding of the total indirect or 

multiplier consequences of ABP and tenant activity.  Multiplier effects can 

be categorised in terms of spending, and employment.  

4.2 Indirect Effects of ABP Activity 

4.2.1 In order to estimate the indirect effects associated with the core activity of 

ABP and its tenants it was necessary to use an economic model of the 

Welsh economy. The approach adopted was to use Welsh Input-Output 

Tudalen 24



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 15 ©2009  

tables for 2003. More information on the methodology can be found in the 

Appendix. 

4.2.2 Data provided by ABP South Wales showed that its estimated output (sales) 

in 2007 was £43.4m. Table 4.1 shows the indirect and induced effects 

associated with this direct output. As ABP spends money in the Welsh 

economy it supports output in its value chain. Moreover, it also supports 

incomes in the local economy, which when spent also create further 

demands for industry output.  

4.2.3 Using data provided by ABP it estimated that local spending on goods and 

services, and wages/salaries in 2007 was an estimated £22.2m. Table 4.1 

shows that the spending supported a total of £36.4m of output in the Welsh 

economy, with the majority of this activity supported in the construction and 

wholesale sectors. Adding this to the £43.4m of ABP output gives total 

output supported by ABP operations in South Wales of £79.8m, which can 

be connected with an estimated £34.2m of Welsh GVA. 

4.2.4 This means that for very £1m of direct ABP output, an estimated £1.84m of 

output in total is supported elsewhere in the Welsh economy, and an 

estimated £0.79m of GVA. Importantly ABP purchases from Welsh 

industries that also themselves purchase high quantities of goods and 

services in the local economy. 

4.2.5 As was shown earlier in the report, ABP supports employment in sectors that 

are relatively labour intensive. The firm uses a large amount of sub-contract 

labour services. However, the core employment of ABP in South Wales is 

quite small. Then when one compares the direct employment of 201 FTEs 

with what is supported as a result of ABP spending, then the ratio of one to 

the other is quite large. It is estimated that every FTE job in ABP supports 

around 3 others in the regional economy. 

4.2.6 Put another way each £1m of ABP direct output in 2007, directly and 

indirectly supported around 19 FTEs in the Welsh economy   

Tudalen 25



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 16 ©2009  

Table 4.1 Multiplier Effects of ABP Own Activity 

 Spending/Output £m 

ABP  £43.4m 

  

Impacts on   

Primary and manufacturing 3.2 

Electricity, gas and water 1.5 

Construction 10.1 

Retail and wholesale 8.6 

Transport and communications 4.2 

Business and professional services 5.9 

Other services 3.0 

Total indirect 36.4 

  

Total spending impact £79.8m 

Total GVA impact £34.2m 

Total output supported in Wales per 
£m ABP output £1.84m 

Total GVA supported in Wales per 
£m ABP output £0.79m 

Total FTEs in Wales supported per 
£m of ABP direct output 19.4 

Totals may not sum due to rounding 

4.2.7 The overall output multipliers for ABP are quite low when compared to those 

of other industries in the Welsh Input-Output tables. This is a direct reflection 

of the fact that total purchases of goods and services are a relatively small 

proportion of ABP gross output. 

4.3 The Activity in Wales supported by ABP tenants 

4.3.1 As highlighted earlier the estimation of the activity supported by ABP 

tenants is a little more complex. Section 3 of this report estimated that the 

tenants of ABP together with those operations defined as directly dependent 

on the ports accounted for around £1.51bn of gross output and 9,711 FTE 

jobs.  

4.3.2 If this activity was hypothetically removed from the Welsh economy it would 

impact upon other elements of the value chain, and upon incomes (this is 

one way of assessing the economic significance of these activities). Table 

4.2 summarises the effects by broad industry. The £1.51bn of tenant gross 

output is associated with a further £1.27bn of output in other Welsh 

industries i.e. this is assumed to be lost if the tenants were removed. The 

corollary of this is that, on average, each £1m of tenant output supports a 

further £1.84m of output in the regional economy, and £0.60m of GVA. 

Tudalen 26



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 17 ©2009  

Table 4.2 Estimated Economic Effects of ABP Tenant Activity 

 Spending/Output £m 

ABP Tenants (direct)                                      1511.8 

Total indirect impacts 1268.8 

Total impact (direct+indirect) 2780.6 

Total GVA supported 902.5 

Total output supported in Wales per £m 
ABP tenant output £1.84m 

Total GVA supported in Wales per £m 
ABP tenant output £0.60m 

Total FTEs in Wales supported per £m of 
ABP tenant direct output 16.7 

Totals may not sum due to rounding 

4.3.3 In large measure the effects here would be felt in the manufacturing, retail 

and wholesale, and financial and business services sectors. Unlike ABP 

itself, the tenant set purchases significant amounts from the regional 

manufacturing sector. 

4.3.4 Table 4.2 also reveals that ABP tenant gross output of £1.51bn was directly 

connected to an estimated 9,711 FTEs.  This means every £1m of tenant 

output is directly associated with around 6.4 FTE jobs. However, once the 

total economy effects of the tenant gross output are taken into account then 

each £1m of tenant output is associated with 16.7 FTE jobs. We also 

estimate that the activities of tenants directly supports around £412.1m of 

GVA directly. Once total economy effects are added to this the total GVA 

supported increases to an estimated £902.5m; put another way each £1m 

of ABP tenant output supported an average of an estimated £0.60m of GVA 

directly and indirectly.  

4.3.5 If these results are placed in a wider Welsh context, then in 2007 it is 

estimated that the gross output of all Welsh industries was around £91.1bn, 

and that total GVA was £44.3bn. In this context the output and GVA directly 

and indirectly supported by ABP tenant activity is around 3.1% of total Welsh 

gross output, and an estimated 2.0% of total Welsh GVA. 

 

 

Tudalen 27



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 18 ©2009  

5 Conclusions 

5.1.1 The objective of this report was to explore the economic impact of both ABP, 

and of firms either within the curtilage of the five ABP ports, or firms 

dependent on port infrastructure. This report demonstrates that ABP 

infrastructure supports extensive economic activity in the Welsh economy.  

5.1.2 This report has highlighted the role of ABP in supporting Welsh trade, 

handling 15.6m tonnes of different cargoes in 2007, including high volumes 

of iron ore, coal, metals and petro-chemical products. 

5.1.3 The report has also shown how ABP infrastructure supports other business 

operations both within the curtilage of the ports themselves and outside of 

it. ABP has 348 tenants within the curtilage of its five South Wales ports. 

Some of Wales’ largest and most important manufacturing industries rely on 

ABP infrastructure and support. ABP also does much to enhance the 

location offer of the contemporary Welsh economy.  

Table 5.1: Comparison of 2007 with 2003 ABP Study 

 
 

2003 
 

2007 

ABP   

Gross output  £42.3m £43.4m 

Employment( FTEs) 212 201 

Total Welsh output directly and indirectly supported by ABP own activity  
 

£63.6m 
 

£79.8m 

Total Welsh GVA directly and indirectly supported by  ABP  - 
   

£34.2m 

   

ABP tenants   

Estimated employment (FTEs) 
 

7,550 
 

9,711 

Gross output of tenants  
 

£1.11bn  
 

£1.51bn  

Total Welsh output directly and indirectly supported by  ABP tenants  
 
 

£1.67bn 

 
 

£2.78bn 

As % Welsh total 2.1% 3.1% 

Total Welsh GVA directly and indirectly supported by  ABP tenants £m - 
 

£902.5m 

As % Welsh total - 2.0% 

 

5.1.4 ABP itself employs around 201 people in industrial South Wales. It is 

estimated that ABP tenants employed 9,711 FTEs and accounted for nearly 

£1.51bn of Welsh output, and £412m of gross value added. Once the total  

Welsh economy effects of ABP tenant activity are taken into account the 

Tudalen 28



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 19 ©2009  

economic impact in terms of gross output supported increases to £2.78bn, 

which is around 3.1% of total Welsh output, and the total contribution to 

Welsh GVA is £902.5m or an estimated 2.0% of the Welsh total. 

5.1.5 In Table 5.1 we compare the results gained from the 2003 study with that 

for the current study. In terms of ABP ‘own’ activity, there is some increase 

in the total Welsh output supported directly and indirectly by ABP’s own 

spending. This may reflect a slightly different pattern of firm spending across 

the two reference years. There are greater differences in terms of the 

estimated employment on ABP property.  This increases by around 30%, but 

with the amount of output directly and indirectly supported by ABP tenant 

output growing by over 25%.  

5.1.6 It should be remembered that an exact reconciliation is not possible here 

with different versions of the Wales Input-Output tables used to estimate 

indirect effects. It is also noted that in this round we have used a different, 

and possibly, a more accurate way of estimating employment in the ABP 

curtilage. Then, in 2003 we estimated that output directly supported in the 

ABP tenants represented an estimated 2.1% of Welsh output. For the 2007 

year we estimate this is closer to 3.0%. In both cases this shows the 

importance of firms in the curtilage of the ABP ports to the Welsh economy.  

5.1.7 In summary, the findings here reveal the strong economic contribution of 

ABP port infrastructure to Wales. Direct port activities of ABP are connected 

to significant levels of direct and indirect output, income and employment 

generation. Similar conclusions apply for tenants on ABP property. These 

economic effects are coupled to less-measurable, but no less relevant 

impacts with, for example, the port infrastructure also improving access to 

tourists, and providing a path for the transfer of new technology and ideas.  

5.1.8 A conclusion of the first report undertaken by Cardiff Business School for 

ABP was that ports have not featured as strongly in the regional 

infrastructure development debate as they perhaps should have done. We 

believe that this is still the case. One corollary of the analysis presented in 

this brief report is then that port development must continue to be viewed as 

an important component part of general transport policy development in 

Wales.  

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 29



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 20 ©2009  

Appendix 1: Using Input-Output tables 

 

To estimate the indirect (or multiplier) consequences of ABP and tenant activity it is 

necessary to have a picture of the local economy that specifies how the various industry 

sectors ‘fit together’ in terms of their trading relationships.  This then allows the effects 

of activity in one sector to be traced through the entire local economy.  The most 

comprehensive picture available of the Welsh economy is an Input-Output table.  

 

The table presents a detailed financial map of the economy for a particular time period, 

typically one-year, and shows the flow of goods and services between industries, 

consumers and government.  As well as being an important descriptive tool, the Input-

Output tables can be used for economic modelling and for impact assessment.  Input-

Output Tables for Wales are the product of a continuing research project to develop a 

comprehensive picture of the Welsh economy and the way it is changing over time, 

undertaken by the Welsh Economy Research Unit at Cardiff Business School. Further 

description of the Welsh Input-Output project, its strengths and limitations, can be found 

in (Bryan et al., 2004).  

 

The methodological approach adopted in this report involved two stages. The first task 

was to estimate the indirect (and induced) effects of ABP activity. In order to model the 

local impact of ABP it was necessary to have a detailed financial picture of the way in 

which ABP spends money. ABP staff completed a questionnaire which detailed their 

employment, wages and salary costs, total sales (and sources of sales revenue), and 

capital spending for 2007. In addition ABP provided details of their operational 

spending by category, and very importantly, the extent to which these expenditures 

involved purchases from Wales or elsewhere. This information was summarised in the 

main report in Section 2 (Table 2.3). The indirect and induced effects connected with 

this spending are gained by placing the direct purchases within the context of the Welsh 

Input-Output tables. 

 

The second task was to estimate the indirect and induced effects connected with ABP 

tenant activity. This task was not so straightforward because details of the local 

spending patterns of the large number of tenants were not available. However, following 

the analysis in section 3, estimates were available on the employment and gross output 

of the tenant group by industry. From the Welsh Input-Output tables information was 

available on the total output and spending of these industries. Consequently, it was 

possible to estimate the proportions of the total Welsh industry output accounted for by 

the ABP tenant set. Furthermore, it was then possible to use the Input-Output 

framework to make a judgement on what would happen to the Welsh economy if the 

operations of these tenants were taken away i.e. a form of hypothetical extraction. The 

results of these processes are found in the main body of this report. 

Tudalen 30



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 21 ©2009  

Appendix 2 ABP Tenant Impact Data for Newport Facility 

 

 

The main report estimated that the tenants of ABP together with those operations 

defined as directly dependent on the ports accounted for an around £1.51bn of gross 

output and 9,711 FTE jobs. Below we provide an estimate of how much of this activity 

centres on ABP Newport. 

 

Table A1 shows that we estimate there are 1,664 employees in the Newport curtilage, 

accounting for around £218m of gross output, and £79m of GVA. 

 

Table A2 shows that we estimate that the £218m of Newport tenant gross output is 

associated with a further £169m of output in other Welsh industries i.e. this is assumed 

to be lost if the tenants were removed, giving a total impact of £387.2m. The corollary 

of this is that, on average, each £1m of Newport tenant output supports a further 

£1.78m of output in the regional economy i.e. an output multiplier of 1.78. This also 

means every £1m of Newport tenant output is directly associated with around 7.6 FTE 

jobs. However, once the indirect and induced effects of the tenant gross output are 

taken into account then each £1m of tenant output is associated with 16.0 FTE jobs.  

ABP tenants at Newport are also estimated to support directly and indirectly around 

£150m of Welsh GVA. 

Table A1 Estimated employment FTE in ABP tenants at Newport (2007) and associated 

output (£m) 

Industry SIC codes 
(see note) 

Employment (full time 
equivalents) 

Output 
£m 

Gross VA  
(GVA) £m 

Manufacture of chemicals, rubber and 
plastics, non-metallic minerals 

 
23-26 

0 0.0 0.0 

Manufacture of metals and metal 
products 

 
27-28 

491 68.5 23.7 

Manufacture of electrical goods and 
other engineering 

 
29-35 

54 8.3 2.3 

Other manufacturing and recycling  
15, 20-22, 
36-37 

297 63.4 15.3 

Construction and aggregate products 
 
45, 14 

224 22.5 8.3 

Wholesale etc  51 
276 19.4 12.5 

Transport and communication 60-64 
264 32.3 14.6 

Renting equipment and other business 
services, and other 

70,71, 74, 
75 

58 3.5 2.2 

Total  
1664 217.9 78.8 

 

 

Tudalen 31



Associated British Ports plc   
  Feb-09  

 22 ©2009  

Table A2 Estimated Economic Effects of ABP Tenant Activity 2007 (Newport) 

ABP Tenants (direct)                                   £217.9m 

Total indirect impacts £169.3m 

Total output impact (direct+indirect) £387.2m 

Total GVA impact (direct + indirect) £149.7m 

Total output supported in Wales per £m 
ABP Newport tenant output £1.78m 

Total GVA supported in Wales per £m 
ABP Newport tenant output £0.69m 

Total FTEs in Wales supported per £m of 
ABP Newport tenant direct output 16.0 

Totals may not sum due to rounding. 

 

Tudalen 32



 

1 

 

 
 
 
Ms Sian Phipps 

Clerks to the Enterprise and  

Business Committee 

National Assembly for Wales 

Cardiff 

CF1NA 

 

3rd March 2012 

 

 

Dear Ms Phipps,        

 

Inquiry Into International Connectivity Through Welsh Ports and Airports 

We are responding to an invitation from the Enterprise and Business Committee to submit 

evidence and information to assist them in their inquiry into the following subjects: 

 

1. How important are major Welsh ports and airports, both to the economy of their own 

regions and to Wales as a whole? 

 

2. What factors limit realisation of the potential offered by major Welsh ports and 

airports; what opportunities are available to develop this potential; and how can these 

be realised? 

 

3. How effectively do Welsh Government policies support the development of major 

Welsh ports and airports? 

 

 

For clarification purposes we wish to advise that this letter comes to you from The Port of 

Holyhead and Fishguard which are owned by Stena Line Ports Limited, a subsidiary of Stena 

AB, based in Sweden.  Stena AB also owns 35 ships and operates 17 ferry routes for freight 

and travel passenger traffic throughout Scandinavia, the North Sea and the Irish Sea 

including: 

 

� Fishguard to Rosslare 

� Holyhead to Dun Laoghaire 

� Holyhead to Dublin 

� Liverpool to Belfast 

� Heysham to Belfast 

� Cairnryan to Belfast 

� Harwich to Hook of Holland  

 

Tudalen 33



 

2 

 

 

Stena Line, as well as providing a comprehensive range of ferry services, are also terminal 

managers and operators on most of their routes.  In addition to Holyhead, Stena Line Ports 

Limited is the statutory port authority in both Cairnryan and Fishguard. 

 

 

How important are major Welsh ports and airports, both to the economy of their own 

regions and to Wales as a whole? 

 

As active council members of the British Ports Association and in particular the Welsh Ports 

Group, Stena Line are of course in complete agreement with the economic précis contained in 

the inquiry submission the committee has received directly from the Association.  

 

At a local level and to emphasise the economic importance of ports on their environs, port 

operations in Holyhead account for a significant proportion of the estimated 19,000 jobs 

available on the Isle of Anglesey.  Of the estimated 4,500 jobs located in Holyhead town 

itself, the Stena Line operation is responsible for direct employment of over 25% of the local 

workforce i.e., port staff, ship staff, border agency staff etc. 

At Fishguard the Stena Line operation is responsible for the direct employment of over 200    

and are the largest single private sector employer in North Pembrokeshire.  

In addition there are an even larger number of indirect employment impacts created 

elsewhere on Anglesey and in Pembrokeshire including hotels, coach drivers, tourist 

attractions and food suppliers etc. 

 

Another important economic benefit to the region and one with significant potential for 

growth provided by Welsh ports is the cruise call market.  It is widely recognised that the 

average passenger spend per person calling on a large cruise ship is in the region of £100.  

With many of the large cruise ships accommodating up to 3 500 passengers, it’s easy to see 

how a concerted effort to help stimulate this lucrative market to use more Welsh ports could 

generate a substantial economic windfall for the region. The cruise market continues to 

expand with operators constantly on the lookout for new and interesting destinations to build 

imaginative itineraries for their customers.  Wales has a very attractive tourism product as we 

know and one which could easily translate into a range of compelling trips for cruise 

operators to promote to their global customer base.        

  

 

 

What factors limit realisation of the potential offered by major Welsh ports and 

airports; what opportunities are available to develop this potential; and how can these 

be realised? 

 

Ports form an important part of the supply chain for many UK importers and exporters and 

although not always easy to measure directly, it is essential that proper consideration needs to 

be given to immediate availability and the time critical nature of the supply chain. 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 34



 

3 

 

 

Road network/ infrastructure 

 

The provision of appropriate road links to both Holyhead and Fishguard ports are of key 

concern to all those who use the port.  At Holyhead Port the A55 Expressway stops some 

distance from the actual port check-in facilities. This missing port link although workable 

does result in excessive traffic build up on the local road network as well as causing 

significant delays to freight and tourist traffic arriving to and departing from the port. Clearly 

such unnecessary blockages are not only costly to our customers but are undoubtedly a 

barrier to future freight and tourism growth at the port.   Ongoing customer frustration on this 

issue is reported to us regularly and our real concern is that this infrastructure failing has the 

potential to limit the future use of the port which in turn will have a negative impact on the 

contribution trade and tourism can make to the economy of the region.     

 

 

The A40 starts at Fishguard Port, joining the M4 corridor 43 miles later, west of Carmarthen.  

The concerns here are more basic than those of the A55 Expressway.  The A40 is a single 

carriage road for 35 miles, with only one 2 lane section east bound for overtaking and none 

west bound. The journey, with no disruption, takes approximately 50 minutes. Even though 

the A40 and M4 are the main economic arteries running through South Wales connecting us 

to Southern Ireland and the South of England, the A40 is not even recognised as a TEN-T 

route.  This lack of recognition is a real cause of concern for us as it means that the A40 will 

continue to be ignored when it comes to consideration for potential future upgrade work.  We 

would urge a review of the A40’s lack of TEN-T status as a matter of urgency.     

 

The development of Holyhead as a Port was enhanced by the extension of the A55 across 

Anglesey. An improvement to the A40 could be a catalyst to the Fishguard Port development 

plan which was submitted for outline planning last year along with a proposed Marina 

development adjacent to the Port. The plan if approved would modernise infrastructure, 

additional capacity and allow access for a second operator which in turn would strengthen the 

corridor and connectivity to Southern ROI. 

 

 

The road infrastructure system to and from a port is an essential element of its offering and 

indeed appeal. At a local level, Holyhead Port is the recipient of many complaints from the 

users of the A55 Expressway. The 100 mile or so section of strategic highway which leads 

from the North West of England through to Holyhead seems to be the subject of continuous 

extensive road repair, traffic delays and resultant congestion. These delays whilst sometimes 

unavoidable could in our opinion be much better co-ordinated throughout the whole length of 

the route so as to minimise the disruption caused to the road users. A strategic highway 

should be treated as such.  Due consideration needs to be given by the various authorities 

involved in the ongoing repairs programme and proper consideration needs to be given to the 

full effects that frequent disruption can cause along the entire length of the road.  

 

Given that the A55 Expressway is a busy TEN-T route, on behalf of Holyhead Port we would 

like to put on record our concerns regarding the inadequacy of freight specific layup stops 

(Truck Stops). As far as we are aware no such facility exists within easy reach of Holyhead 

Port. As you will be aware, freight drivers are subject to strict driver hour limitations.  The 

Tudalen 35



 

4 

 

lack of appropriate Truck Stops means that the drivers are forced to find alternative sites to 

park up to rest to comply with the law and on many occasions their choice of location may 

not always be popular with local councils. A very similar problem exists at Fishguard Port. 

We are aware that a private company (Conygar Ltd) are actively planning a ‘Truck Stop’ 

facility both in Holyhead and Fishguard Ports.  We would urge the Government to support 

these initiatives and help with the provision of this much needed infrastructure improvement 

as quickly as possible. 

 

Port infrastructure: 

 

Cruise ships 

 

Wales in our opinion is very a much an untapped cruise market destination and given the 

right level of reliable long term investment, promotional support and vision, could quite 

easily replicate the same level of success that Ireland has managed to achieve in the last 20 

years.  We don’t have to look too far to see successful examples of this strategy being 

deployed in practice.  For example, over the last 20 years Cork Port has managed to grow its 

annual cruise call business from 8 to 54 ships.  Wales has as much right to make its claim on 

the burgeoning cruise market as Ireland does!  The question is do we want to? 

 

To be successful in the global cruise market, the Welsh Government via Visit Wales, local 

councils and various other stakeholders need to work in partnership to help support the ports 

in order to provide the right infrastructure to accommodate these large ships.  Allied to this 

we must have a robust long term marketing campaign i.e. one that can persuade these large 

cruise companies to visit Wales year on year.  This will be a challenge.  Cruise line operators 

work on creating their itineraries a number of years in advance so we need to be working as a 

team now to help position Wales front of mind in their decision making process in a industry 

which globally will carry 22m passengers by 2015 spending in excess of £11bn. 

 

To date, Wales has addressed the whole issue of cruise tourism in a relatively ad hoc way. 

CruiseWales, a group of ports, Welsh Government officials, destination managers and 

tourism operators was established in 2004 and it is this organisation that needs to be 

strengthened and properly funded if we are to make a serious attempt to tap into this lucrative 

market.  As mentioned above, Ireland has embraced this opportunity very successfully with 

its Cruise Ireland initiative and the Irish economy is now benefitting significantly from that 

support and commitment.  

 

 

 

How effectively do Welsh Government policies support the development of major Welsh 

ports and airports? 

 

 

Links between individual ports in Wales and the Welsh Assembly Government are on the 

whole strong and productive.  At the beginning of March 2009, a group of strategic Welsh 

ports collectively met the then Deputy First Minister to look at a range of issues confronting 

the industry. Following on from this meeting and in recognition of the ongoing need to work 

in partnership, a Welsh Ports Group has been established which continues to meet up twice a 

Tudalen 36



 

5 

 

year. We would ask the Welsh Government to continue to actively support this group which 

we believe will enable Welsh ports to become far more closely aligned to and assist with the 

improved strategic development of government policy in this key area.   

 

We are committed to playing our part in helping to stimulate tourism.  As mentioned above in 

relation to the global cruise ship market, it is vital that we work in partnership ensuring that 

all the key stakeholders are committed to providing the support and drive necessary to help 

Wales take a bigger portion of this lucrative market.  Closer to home, the same focus and 

commitment needs to be maintained when it comes to stimulating domestic visitor markets.  

In the ferry industry we are committed to working with Visit Wales to help drive visitor 

numbers and are keen to look at and support innovative joint marketing strategies that will 

help position Wales as a ‘must see’ destination.  To date there has been some progress in this 

area but we are confident that the ferry industry can help support a more proactive and 

sustained approach to markets across the UK and Ireland and help drive visitor numbers up in 

the months and years ahead.   

 

 

We hope this submission is helpful to the Committee’s deliberations and of course we will be 

more than happy to answer any further questions you may have. 

 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

 

 

Wyn Parry      Ian Davies 

Port Manager      Route Director 

Stena Line Ports Limited.               Stena Line Ltd 

Holyhead      Fishguard 

 

 

 

Tudalen 37



PAPER TO THE ENTERPRISE AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE – 14 MARCH 2012 
BUSINESS, ENTERPRISE, TECHNOLOGY AND SCIENCE PORTFOLIO PRIORITIES 
 

 1

Introduction 

1. The purpose of this paper is to set out written evidence to the Enterprise and 
Business Committee on developments in the Business, Enterprise, Technology and 
Science portfolio.  

Access to Finance 

2. The Wales Economic Growth Fund attracted 498 applications with a grant request 
value of £155 million.  As of the end of February offers had been made to 44 
businesses with a value of just over £13 million.  These are expected to create and 
safeguard around 1300 jobs in Wales.   For example, the £162k offered to Drias 
Transnat has helped to secure their move to Cardiff with the immediate creation of 
30 jobs, and the £3.4m towards Tallent Automotive’s £12m investment will assist in 
securing the medium term future of the Plant and safeguarding of 302 jobs at the 
site.   Given the success of the scheme and volume of applications received an 
additional £15m has been allocated to the scheme.    

3. The Wales SME Investment fund, administered by Finance Wales opens for 
applications from businesses across Wales this month.  This is a £40 million Fund 
which will complement the existing JEREMIE Fund and will ensure that SMEs, 
including those who deal direct with consumers, can access essential finance in the 
form of equity and loans are eligible for repayable capital investment.     

4. Following pressure from the Welsh Government to the Business Secretary, Dr Vince 
Cable, we are awaiting Welsh-level data on bank lending from Project Merlin. 

5. A session was held in Wales earlier this month by Tim Breedon as part of the UK 
Government review of the challenges facing businesses in diversifying their finance. 

6. The Welsh Government submitted a bid to host the Green Investment Bank in 
Wales.  The bids are currently being reviewed and an announcement is expected by 
the Business Secretary imminently. 

Broadband in Wales 

7. The competitive process to secure the Next Generation Broadband Wales Project is 
underway and the aim is for deployment of infrastructure to begin from summer 
2012. 

8. The Broadband Support Scheme, which provides a grant of up to £1,000 to 
residents, businesses and third sector organisations located in broadband notspots 
(defined as sub-2Mbps connectivity) to obtain a broadband connection, has been 
extended for a further 12 months beyond 31 March 2012 with additional funds for the 
fiscal year 2012-13.  To date, £1,719,000 has been awarded under this scheme to 
2,400 applicants to improve broadband connectivity across Wales.   

Business Rates Policy 

9. Rates relief for small businesses has been extended, so that around half of small 
businesses in Wales will pay no business rates until April 2013. 

Eitem 3

Tudalen 38



PAPER TO THE ENTERPRISE AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE – 14 MARCH 2012 
BUSINESS, ENTERPRISE, TECHNOLOGY AND SCIENCE PORTFOLIO PRIORITIES 
 

 2

10. The Business Rates Task and Finish Group will be completing their independent 
review of Business Rates policy in Wales by the end of March 2012. 

City Regions  

11. The City Regions Task and Finish Group have issued a call for evidence.   The 
group will continue the evidence gathering exercise until Wednesday 18 April 2012 
and will be supported by focus groups held around Wales.  The Group will issue 
their final report this summer. 

Enterprise Zones in Wales  

12. Five candidate zones are progressing to being given full Enterprise Zone status. 
These are Cardiff Central Business District; St Athan; Ebbw Vale; Deeside and 
Anglesey. It is proposed that these zones will be operational in April 2012, in line 
with the English zones.  Discussions continue with the UK Government for flexibility 
on the number of zones attracting enhanced capital allowances, the size of projects 
and the overall funding ceiling. 

13. Interim governance arrangements are being put in place.  As in England the 
approach will allow a degree of local discretion.  In the interim, Chairs have been put 
in place for the five zones until the end of May to maintain momentum. The Boards 
can use this time to make their own arrangements following best practice guidelines.   

14. Two new zones, Snowdonia EZ, Trawsfynydd and Haven Waterway, Pembrokeshire 
are to be given preferred status and will be subject to further assessment.   

15. A short-term Task and Finish Group is being established to explore the proposals for 
local growth zones in Powys as an alternative approach to Enterprise Zones and will 
be expected to produce an interim report before the end of March 2012.   
Discussions are ongoing with the unsuccessful bidders to see how some of the 
benefits of their proposals could be realised without Enterprise Zone status 

Knowledge Transfer Partnership programme for Wales 

16. The Knowledge Transfer Partnership (KTP) programme in Wales is being enhanced.  
The enhanced KTP programme will build on the success of the exiting programme 
and allow key companies in Wales, particularly the anchor companies and their 
associated supply chains, to engage at high level with their international offices and 
overseas academic institutions. 

Micro-Business 

17. The Micro-Business Task and Finish Group report recommended that the Welsh 
Government focuses on five primary priorities to sustain and grow micro-businesses: 
Access to and awareness of business support services; access to finance; 
mentoring and coaching; procurement; and regulatory burden.   Details of how the 
recommendations will be implemented are set out in the Written Statement issued 
on 29 February.   

Sectors 

Tudalen 39



PAPER TO THE ENTERPRISE AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE – 14 MARCH 2012 
BUSINESS, ENTERPRISE, TECHNOLOGY AND SCIENCE PORTFOLIO PRIORITIES 
 

 3

18. The sector approach is ensuring targeted funding at key industries, which is vital 
during a time when public spending is being cut from Whitehall.   The Sector 
Strategic Priority Executive Summaries are now published on the Welsh 
Government Business Wales web site. They are currently published in draft format, 
whilst policy elements are developed. 

Top Domain Name 

19. Nominet will be taking forward applications to ICANN for both .wales and .cymru 
domain names.  Nominet is a membership organisation operating on a not-for-profit 
basis. It has maintained the .uk top level domain over the past 15 years and has a 
strong track record in the technical excellence of its registry operation.  

20. Nominet will work with the Welsh Government to develop a Memorandum of 
Understanding that will provide the basis of the working relationship and ensure 
ongoing alignment with Welsh Government policy. 

Tourism in Wales 

21. Visit Wales continues to work closely with the tourist industry, encouraging 
investment in, and improving the quality of, the visitor experience in Wales, as well 
as marketing Wales within the UK and internationally.  The 2011 Wales Visitor 
Survey shows that the natural environment and the friendliness of Welsh people 
come out top when visitors rate their holiday in Wales. The overall satisfaction with 
Wales as a place to visit is very high across all visitor types and having been to 
Wales on holiday, the likelihood to recommend Wales was also very high. 

Trade and Investment 

22. A new Major Projects team has been established to lead on trade and investment.  
Flexible financial support, investment in infrastructure, and a focus on 21st Century 
communications will ensure a responsive and credible offering required by high-
quality inward investors in a global economy.  

Working Smarter 

23. The "Working Smarter" report, into the regulatory burden on Welsh farmers and land 
managers in Wales, was published on the 31 January and includes 74 
recommendations to the Welsh Government on how to deliver better regulation 
within an appropriate framework, improved customer service for the farmers and a 
sector with increased profitability from a business perspective.   A full Action Plan 
detailing how the recommendations will be implemented is being drawn up and will 
be published in the spring. 

Summary 

24. The evidence in this paper outlines some of the key portfolio developments that are 
helping to deliver our commitment to support and invest in high performing, quality 
companies in all those parts of the economy which can create employment, wealth 
and a sustainable Wales.  

Edwina Hart MBE OStJ AM 
2 March 2012 

Tudalen 40


	Agenda
	2 Ymchwiliad i gysylltedd rhyngwladol drwy borthladdoedd a meysydd awyr Cymru - Sesiwn dystiolaeth
	EBC(4)-10-12 Papur 2 - Cymdeithas Porthladdoedd Prydain
	EBC(4)-10-12 Papur 3 - Stena Line

	3 Sesiwn i graffu ar waith y Gweinidog - y Gweinidog Busnes, Menter, Technoleg a Gwyddoniaeth

